
Page 1

AGENDA
Meeting: TIDWORTH AREA BOARD

Place: Collingbourne Ducis Village Hall, Chicks Lane, Collingbourne Ducis, 

                      SN8 3UH

Date: Monday 16 May 2016

Time: 7.00 pm

Including the Parishes of Chute, Chute Forest, Collingbourne Ducis, Collingbourne 
Kingston, Enford, Everleigh, Fittleton, Ludgershall, Netheravon, Tidcombe and Fosbury, 
and Tidworth.

The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public.
The chairman will try to ensure that everyone who wishes to speak will have the 

opportunity to do so.

   If you have any requirements that would make your attendance at the meeting easier, 
please contact your Democratic Services Officer.

Networking opportunities will be available from 6:30pm. 

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services 
Officer), on 01249 706612 or email kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk

All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115.

Wiltshire Councillors

Chris Williams  (Chairman) Ludgershall and Perham Down

Mark Connolly  (Vice Chairman) Tidworth

Charles Howard The Collingbournes and Netheravon

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request.

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 
above.

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


Page 3

Items to be considered Time

1  Appointments 5 mins

Election of the Chairman
i.To elect a Chairman for the forthcoming year.

ii.Election of the Vice Chairman
To elect a Vice Chairman for the forthcoming year.

iii.Appointments to Outside Bodies and Working Groups.
To note that appointments to outside bodies and working groups
for the forthcoming year:

 Community Area Transport Group 

 Tidworth Community Area Partnership 

 Tidworth Leisure Centre Executive Committee 

 Local Youth Network (LYN)

 Wellington Academy Governing Body 

2  Chairman's Welcome, Introductions and Announcements 
(Pages 1 - 12)

Announcements:

 Wiltshire Carers Strategy.

 Army Rebasing.

 Groundwork and Tesco ‘Bags of Help’ funding.

 Meet the Funder event 22 June 2016

3  Apologies for Absence 

4  Declarations of Interest 

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or 
dispensations granted by the Standards Committee.



Page 4

5  Minutes (Pages 13 - 24)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on Monday 14 March 
2016.

6  Wellington Academy - Ofted report update 20 mins

Mike Milner.

7  Wilts CIL - My Life. My Choice 15 mins

Mary Reed.

8  The Trussell Trust 15 mins

Lucy Duffy.

9  Wiltshire Wildlife Trust 15 mins

Aisling Hunt.

10  Community Engagement Manager - updates (Pages 25 - 34) 5 mins

Marc Read.

 To include appointment of the Health & Wellbeing 
Champion.

 The Road to Rio Challenge.

11  Local Youth Network update & Grant Funding 5 mins

Wendy Higginson.

12  Community Area Transport Group update 5 mins

Cllr Mark Connolly.

13  Community Area Grants (Pages 35 - 74) 20 mins

To determine any applications for Community Area Grants.

Grant application packs for the Community Area Grants Scheme 
are available from the Community Area Manager or electronically 
at:



Page 5

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboa
rdscommunitygrantsscheme.htm.

14  Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the 
Army, NHS, TCAP and other Partners (Pages 75 - 78)

15 mins

To receive any updates.

15  Date of Next Meeting, Evaluation and Close 

The next meeting of the Tidworth Area Board will be on Monday
18 July 2016.

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm




Chairman’s Announcements

Subject: Carers in Wiltshire: Joint Strategy 2016 - 2020

Officer 
Contact 
Details:

Karen Walters, Community Commissioner (Carers)

Weblink: http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal 

Wiltshire Council and NHS Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group, in 
consultation with their other strategic partners (especially Carer Support 
Wiltshire, Wiltshire Parent Carer Council and Spurgeons) and over 50 carers 
have developed a new strategy for carers. The draft document is now 
available for the public to view and comment on before being finalised. It can 
be viewed in full on the council’s consultations webpage: 
http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal 

Information postcards and leaflets are also available at this meeting. 

Publicity materials can be provided from Karen Walters, Wiltshire Council, for 
any partners who would be willing to support spreading the message or if you 
would like to invite her to attend any local carer groups or meetings during the 
consultation period.

Please feedback comments by 13 July 2016 to:  Karen Walters, Community 
Commissioner (Carers) at:

Address: County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge BA14 8JN
Email: Karen.walters@wiltshire.gov.uk
Mobile: 07876 393890 

Who do we mean when we talk about carers?
Anyone can become a carer. A carer is someone of any age, including a child 
(young carer), who provides unpaid support to a family member or friend who 
could not always manage without this help. This could be caring for a relative 
(a parent, grandparent, sibling, child, spouse, partner) or friend who is ill, frail, 
disabled or who has mental health or substance misuse problems. They 
should not be confused with paid or volunteer support workers.

Most people are likely to be undertaking a caring role at some point in their 
lives, with many of us needing to access some form of information, advice and 
support during this difficult time.

Have we got things right in the new strategy?
We believe we have a strategy that is truly representative of the needs of 
Wiltshire carers. However, now is the time for you to have your say and 
influence the way services are commissioned over the next 4 years.

We invite members of the public, especially carers, to comment on this 
document to influence the future commissioning of support for carers in 
Wiltshire. We need you to tell us if we have got things right. We also want to 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal
http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal
http://consult.wiltshire.gov.uk/portal
mailto:Karen.walters@wiltshire.gov.uk


Chairman’s Announcements
know if you, as a carer, feel represented within this strategy and if not, what is 
it you would like to see added or changed. What services do you currently 
access (if any) that you value and why they are important to you?
We invite organisations and business in Wiltshire to comment on the 
document and to inform us of any contributions they are already making or 
could make, in order to support the delivery of this strategy. 

A detailed action plan will be developed once the strategy is finalised to 
support its delivery.

Why is this strategy needed?
A Carers UK press release on 12 November 2015 stated “Unpaid carers save 
the UK £132 billion a year – the cost of a second NHS.” 1

70% of the 47,608 2carers living in Wiltshire continue to remain hidden and it 
is believed that many of these people will not be aware of their carer status. 
Accessible information and advice is therefore vital to ensure that these 
people know where to get help and support when they need it.

The Care Act places additional duties on social care services in assessing 
and addressing the needs of carers. Carers now have parity of esteem with 
those people they care for. We need to ensure that carers’ of people with 
mental health issues are able to access appropriate services to meet their 
needs. There is a requirement for all health, social care and educational 
professionals to identify young carers and ensure their needs are being met 
and that they are not carrying out inappropriate caring roles.

The 2015 Healthwatch report “Unpaid Carers in Wiltshire: help in a crisis” 
highlights the need to review how we support carers in a crisis. Whilst early 
intervention and prevention measures is expected to reduce the likelihood of 
this point being reached, there will be unavoidable circumstances when a 
carer reaches crisis point and it is vital targeted support is available to help 
them when they reach this point.

Our shared vision for carers in Wiltshire:
Wiltshire cares for carers by ensuring that carers living in Wiltshire are 
identified and accepted as expert partners in care; are well informed; and 
maintain a good quality of life and healthy lifestyle outside of their caring 
responsibility.

To find out more please read the full strategy and / or contact Karen Walters 
direct.

1 Valuing Carers 2015 – the rising value of carers’ support Lisa Buckner (University of Leeds), Sue 
Yeandle (University of Sheffield)
2 Census 2011

www.onecouncilforwiltshire.co.uk/area-boards

Page 2



Chairman’s Announcements

Page 3





Army Basing Briefing for the Amesbury, Pewsey, Tidworth and Warminster 
Area Boards - Updated 29 April  2016 

 
 

Background 
 

The Ministry of Defence’s Army Basing Programme  will be delivered by 2020 and it is planned that all the 
Service personnel and their families who are due to relocate to Wiltshire from Germany, will do so by the 
summer of 2019.  This will see some 4,000 Army personnel and approximately 3,200 dependants relocating to 
Larkhill, Bulford, Tidworth Ludgershall and Upavon.  The MOD plans to invest in excess of £1 billion in 
Wiltshire under the programme,  in these settlements as well as building more than 900 family homes and 
the additional levels of infrastructure and services to be provided by Wiltshire Council.  

 
May 2016 Update 

 
Planning Applications 

 
The three applications for Service Family Accommodation at Ludgershall, Bulford and Larkhill were 
considered by the Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) on 13 April 2016.  The committee resolved to grant 
permission for all three applications subject to the conditions recommended by the planning officer to the 
SPC and agreement of a Section 106 Agreement (which will define the contributions by the MOD) that must 
also make reference  to the provision of affordable housing, should the houses be sold on the open market in 
the future.  There were additional caveats: 

• In respect of Ludgershall and Bulford, that additional “informatives” relating to speed limits on 
roads surrounding the development site be made to address road safety. (It should be noted that 
Informatives allow the local planning authority to draw an applicant’s attention to other relevant 
matters, but cannot be used in lieu of planning conditions). 
 

• In respect of Larkhill: 
o that the final design of the new roundabout access to the SFA must take account of Historic 

England’s comments in respect of the assessment of visual impacts, including a night skies 
assessment, to demonstrate the outstanding universal value of the Stonehenge World 
Heritage Site is protected; 

o  that prior to its determination, assessment be given of the relative merits of a 3-legged or 4-
legged design for the roundabout access to the site and, if necessary, changes to that access 
being incorporated into the proposed development; 

o that in dealing with boundary treatments beside the Golf Centre, specific reference was to 
be made to consider the risk from wayward golf balls impacting upon the SFA site. 

Planning permission for the main camp works at Tidworth, Larkhill and Bulford is being considered under 
delegated powers and are expected to be determined shortly.  Permission for development at Perham 
Down was given in July 2015.  The application for Upavon’s redevelopment is expected shortly.  It is later 
than the other applications as there is far less work required and therefore the development programme 
is shorter than that for the other camps. 

 

Page 5



Section 106 Agreement 
 
The MOD’s Defence Infrastructure Organisation and Wiltshire Council have attended a series of meetings to 
finalise the section 106 agreement (s106).  The final version will reflect upon any changes that may be 
required from the outcome of the SPC deliberations and it is hoped to sign and seal the agreement in May 
2016. The s106 will cover: 

• Off-site road junction improvements 
• Provision of sustainable transport measures 
• Land and contributions for education provision 
• Delivery of community land / facilities at Ludgershall and Larkhill 
• Access to MOD sports and community facilities 
• Provision and maintenance of on-site public open space and play facilities 
• Contributions towards collection of waste 
• Delivery of the Larkhill medical facility to be made available for NHS GPs 
• Ecology provisions – including: terms of reference for the Salisbury Plain Environmental Steering 

Group and Hydrology Steering Group, provision of recreation pressure mitigation in respect of 
breeding Stone Curlew, the detail and implementation of the Recreational Access Action Plan 

• Affordable Housing commitments in the event the MOD sells the SFA covered by the applications. 

 
Community Infrastructure  

 
The local Steering Group (SG) comprising Ludgershall Town Council (LTC), Wiltshire Council, the NHS, local 
health surgeries, MOD representation and the Community Engagement Manager met again on 14th April.   
Progress is being made to determine how the building being offered by the MOD can be best utilised and to 
ensure it is economically viable.  

 

Somme Road Shared Use (Cycle & Pedestrian) Path 

The cycle path at Somme Road is nearing completion.  DIO have completed the surfacing of the base and all 
that remains is for the 26th Royal Engineers unit to install lighting, complete the road markings and make 
good local groundworks.  The unit is due to complete the work by July.  It is hoped that the path will be 
officially opened in August, before the 2016/17 academic year starts.  This is a good example of partnership 
working between Wiltshire Council, the DIO and Army to benefit local communities. 

 

NB: Now that there is positive news on the applications and only Upavon’s main camp works requires any 
further planning consideration, these regular briefings to the Amesbury, Pewsey, Tidworth and 
Warminster Area Boards will cease.  However, if there are any issues of significance or interest, they will 
be produced on an “ad hoc” basis for the benefit of the relevant board. 

  

END OF ANNOUNCEMENT 

Page 6



(Briefed previously - but repeated for reference if required) 

School Infrastructure 

 The following additional school infrastructure is to be provided by the summer 2019: 

• Funding for the additional 150 places currently being built at Bulford, Kiwi which will be ready for the 
new academic year (summer 2016) to accommodate children from the incoming 5 RIFLES unit.  
Planning permission to extend Bulford Kiwi Primary was granted on 18th December 2015.  The 
extension to Bulford St Leonard’s has completed and will also be available for these and other 
children.  This has not required funding from the ABP.     

•  The transfer and expansion of St Michael’s Primary School from Figheldean to Larkhill, adjacent to 
the proposed new 444 SFA development will be available by the summer 2018.  Conceptual plans for 
the new St Michael’s Primary school building were displayed at a local exhibition in the Larkhill 
Community Centre on 25th January.   

• The provision of 60 Early Years places to be incorporated into the above school will also be available 
by the summer 2018. 

• Extension of both Avon Valley College and Wellington Academy to provide some 375 additional 
places.  The MOD is also offering two hectares of land to extend Wellington Academy. 

• Provision of a new primary school at Ludgershall alongside the MOD’s proposed 246 SFA 
development.  This will be available by summer 2019. 

• The provision of 30 Early Years places to be incorporated into the above school will also be available 
by summer 2019. 

 
Table 1 – Net Additional Population by Unit Location based on Army Basing Programme Planning 
Assumptions. Children numbers are based on Army National Ratio of 1.3 children per Military family 
 

 

Location SLA Pop 
SFA Population 

Total  
Military  Spouses Children 

Larkhill 1,297 698 698 908 3,601 

Bulford 414 223 223 290 1,150 

Tidworth  317 169 169 219 873 

Perham Down (Ludgershall) 414 223 223 290 1,150 

Upavon 126 78 78 102 384 

Total 2,568 1,391 1,391 1,809 7,159 

 
(Source: MOD Revision to Masterplan issued 27 Nov 2015) 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Table 2 – Army Basing Programme Service Family Accommodation (SFA) to be provided by location: 
 
 

Location SFA units 

 

Notes 

Larkhill 444  

Bulford 227 
This includes 36 units that will replace existing SFA, so the net 
new requirement is 191 for the Army Basing Programme. 

Ludgershall 246  

Tidworth 0  
The MOD is acquiring 100 units from a commercial 
development in Tidworth - (Riverbourne Fields to meet the 
Army Basing Programme requirements). 

Upavon 0  

Total 917  

 
(Source: MOD revision to Masterplan issued 27 Nov 2015) 
 
 

Page 8



Chairman’s Announcements

Subject: Groundwork and Tesco ‘Bags of Help’ funding 

Officer 
Contact 
Details:

Caroline McKenna  Caroline.mckenna@groundwork.org.uk 

Weblink: http://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme 

Groundwork have partnered with Tesco to deliver a new community grants scheme. 
Last funding round there were many successful projects from across Wiltshire and we would 
like even more applications this round!

The Tesco Bags of Help scheme was launched in October 2015 and enables local 
community groups to apply for money to develop local resources and promote greener living 
and working.  There are grants of £8,000, £10,000 and £12,000 available. 

There are several rounds of applications throughout the programme and the first round of 
funding completed in February. Over 8 million Tesco customers voted across 2,500 stores 
nationwide for variety of community group projects, and from this nearly £13 million will be 
awarded to 1,284 community groups.  

The second round of funding applications is now open and application process will be 
ongoing until 3rd June. To find out more, go to our website at 
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/tescocommunityscheme 

As part of our work to promote the programme across the South West region, we would also 
be interested in any funding events we may be able to attend to provide information to 
prospective applicants, so if you have any relevant events or groups you think this may be 
applicable to, please get in touch. 

Page 9

mailto:Caroline.mckenna@groundwork.org.uk
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/tescocommunityscheme




Chairman’s Announcements

Subject: Meet the Funder event 22 June 2016

Officer 
Contact 
Details:

Wiltshire Community Foundation info@wiltshirecf.org.uk 

Weblink: Event Brite- ticket purchase 

Wiltshire Community Foundation is hosting a ‘Meet the Funder’ event for voluntary 
and community groups with speakers including The BIG Lottery and Power to 
Change with a range of workshops during the day about funding available and how 
to apply.

Date: Wednesday 22nd June 2016

Registration: 9:30am for start at 10am.

Venue: Devizes Corn Exchange

Cost: £8.50 per person with a light lunch provided

Finish: 3pm.

When you book, please select two workshops to attend – one in the morning and 
one in the afternoon:

AM
•Workshop A: Better Applications, Jane Butler, Wiltshire Community 

Foundation
•Workshop B: Crowdfunding, Globalgiving.com
•Workshop C: WASP Sports Funding

PM
•Workshop D: BIG Lottery Applications, Tim Temple
•Workshop E: Crowdfunding, Globalgiving.com
•Workshop F: Demonstrating Impact, Heidi Yorke

Page 11

mailto:info@wiltshirecf.org.uk
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/meet-the-funder-2016-tickets-23793056673?utm_campaign=6995301_Meet+the+Funder+-+book+now&utm_medium=email&utm_source=Community+Foundation+for+Wiltshire+and+Swindon&dm_i=1Z6Y%2C45XLX%2CDWFC5G%2CF58QZ%2C1




Page 1 of 11

MINUTES
Meeting: TIDWORTH AREA BOARD

Place: Tidworth Garrison Theatre, 18 St Andrews Rd, Tidworth SP9 7PD

Date: 14 March 2016

Start Time: 7.00 pm

Finish Time: 9.05 pm

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to: 

Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services Officer), Tel: 01249 706612 or (e-mail) 
kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk

Papers available on the Council’s website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

In Attendance:

Wiltshire Councillors
Cllr Chris Williams, Cllr Mark Connolly and Cllr Charles Howard

Wiltshire Council Officers
Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager (CEM)
Kevin Fielding – Democratic Services Officer
Wendy Higginson – Youth Services

Town and Parish Councillors
Collingbourne Ducis Parish Council – Keith Cockerton
Ludgershall Town Council – Owen White
Netheravon Parish Counil – Ian Blair-Pilling
Tidworth Town Council – Humph Jones 

Partners
Tidworth Garrison – Col Steve Lawton
Tidworth Community Area Partnership – Reia Jones
Healthwatch Wiltshire – Paul Lefever 

Total in attendance: 45

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 of 11

Agenda 
Item No.

Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision

1  Chairman's Welcome, Introductions and Announcements

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Tidworth Area Board.

The Area Board members and Wiltshire Council officers were introduced.

The following Chairman’s Announcements were noted:

 Wiltshire Passenger Transport Review.

 Army Rebasing.

2  Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from: Denis Bottomley – Everleigh Parish 
Council and Tony Pickernell – Tidworth Community Area Partnership.

3  Declarations of Interest

There were none.

4  Minutes

Decision

 The minutes of the meeting held on Monday 18 January 2016 were 
confirmed as the correct record.

5  Housing - Meeting Local Need

Sue Geary – HOD Commissioning - Community Services,, Wiltshire Council 
gave a presentation that outlined Wiltshire Council’s housing offer for Affordable 
Housing in the Tidworth community area.  

Points made included:

National Policy Context

 Increase owner-occupation including low cost options.

 Make best use of existing social housing stock.

Page 14



Page 3 of 11

 Reduce burden on public sector (housing benefit bill).

 Increase supply of new homes.

 Promote independent living in the community.

Wiltshire priorities

 Ensuring there are a range of housing options available to meet needs.

 Promoting home ownership housing.

 Enabling provision of homes for the most vulnerable.

 To help people to achieve independence and choice enabling them to live 
at home for longer.

 To improve the quality and make best use of existing stock.

Next steps

 Commissioning research at community area level.

 Developing housing strategy & agreeing priorities.

 Work with local communities & partners to understand local need and 
deliver new homes.

 Consider options to increase choices for those not able to meet needs in 
open market.

 Respond to national policy changes

The accuracy of some of the figures referred to in the power point presentation 
was queried by several members of the public in attendance.
It was therefore agreed that Sue Geary would refer the queries that had been 
raised to Wiltshire Council officers who could check their data and feedback to 
the Area Board figures that were perhaps more meaningful to the Tidworth 
community area than those presented on the night.

The Chairman thanked Sue Geary for her presentation.

Page 15



Page 4 of 11

Note

Answers to questions/queries raised on the night are attached.

14.03.16 Housing Presentation Q & A's

6  Local Highways Investment Fund 2014-2020

Parvis Khansari - Associate Director Highways and Transport, Wiltshire Council 
outlined Wiltshire Council’s Local Highways Investment Fund 2014-2020.

Points made included:

 That Wiltshire Council was undertaking a major programme of investment 
in highway maintenance over six years, which was delivering a significant 
improvement in the condition of the county’s highway network.

 The flooding in 2013/14 had an adverse effect on road conditions, but the 
additional investment through the Council’s ‘Local Highways Investment 
Fund 2014 – 2020’ had arrested this deterioration, and the county’s road 
conditions continue to improve.

 The investment had been targeted at those roads in worst condition, and 
includes minor roads as well as the main roads. The programme was just 
reaching the end of its second year, and had already seen a substantial 
amount of work completed.

 In 2016/17 it was proposed to increase expenditure on treating the 
smaller sites, many of which have been outstanding for some time, and to 
reduce the number of larger surfacing sites.

 A list of potential sites for next year had been prepared for each 
community area. The site list was based on the existing condition of the 
roads and the anticipated deterioration in the future, and the area boards 
were invited to consider the proposals.

Decision

 That the Tidworth Area Board agrees that the A338 Collingbournes – 
surfacing and repairs would be its main scheme during the period 
2016/17.

Concerns were raised from the floor re the quality of road patching, and the 
longevity of these repairs.

The Chairman thanked Parvis Khansari for his presentation.

Page 16



Page 5 of 11

7  New Tidworth Leisure Centre Manager

Jonathan Hargrave - Leisure Operations Health and Wellbeing Manager,   
Wiltshire Council gave a short presentation to introduce himself and to outline 
his vision as the new Tidworth Leisure Centre Manager.
Points made included:

Group Involvement

• Clubs and societies 
• Sporting and non sporting 
• Special events-large or small 
• Regular bookings 
• Working with local schools.
• More community engagement.

Individual involvement

• Pay and Play 
• Organised pay and play 
• Leagues 
• ladders 

Fitness Offer

• Current range of classes
• Current Fitness Studio 
• Looking to develop
• What do the community want? 

Aquatics

• Current Program and activities 
• What do the community want? 

Questions raised from the floor included:

Frustrations that the Military appear to have a lot more access to the Centre 
than the general public do.
a.Currently looking at this issue, and hope to make more periods available to the 
general public.

Page 17



Page 6 of 11

It can be very intimidating as a woman to use the gym when male service 
personnel are using it. Some of the male service personnel have made sexist 
comments to woman when using the gym.
a.The service personnel had been told about their behaviour whilst using the 
gym. The Garrison Commander was now aware of this issue.

The Chairman thanked Jonathan Hargrave for his presentation.

8  SSAFA - What they do and how they help service personnel and their families

Lt Col Bill Common – SSAFA Secretary, Wiltshire gave a presentation that 
highlighted the work of SSAFA.

Points made included:

 Through two World Wars and every subsequent conflict involving Britain, 
SSAFA had been there for our servicemen and women and their families.

 SSAFA provided practical, emotional and financial support to anyone who 
was serving or had ever served, and their families.

 SSAFA had a network of trained volunteers provide support on military 
bases in the UK and around the World.

 SSAFA had around 7,500 volunteers.

 Last year SSAFA supported 40,645 veterans and their families.

The Chairman thanked Lt Col Common for his informative presentation.

9  Community Engagement Manager - updates

Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager gave the following updates:

Child Poverty Profiles

 That a well attended workshop had been held. Now working with Wendy 
Higginson to pull ideas together and put an action plan in place. A 
working group would also be set up.

Mens Shed

 That an open meeting had been held at the Wellington Academy, with 
attendees showing a real interest in getting a Tidworth community area 
shed started.

Page 18



Page 7 of 11

Clean for the Queen

 Several well attended events had been held in Tidworth and Ludgershall. 
Well done to all those that took part.

Road to Rio Challenge

 Registration would open on 2 May 2016.
 

 Individuals could sign up for the Running, Cycling, Swimming, Walking, 
Junior Sports and Ultimate Sports Challenges to take part in a virtual 
journey to Rio.

 Teams could sign up for the Road to Rio challenge to complete the actual 
distance between London and Rio by running, swimming, cycling or 
walking as a combined entry.

 Once entered, participants could continue to log their activity online.

Queens 90th Birthday Celebrations

 That many events were being planned across the community area.

The Chairman thanked Marc Read for his updates.

10  Local Youth Network (LYN) update and Grant Funding

Wendy Higginson advised that:

 “Dancing back to 1914” – had been a great success, and wonderful to 
work with such a great group of young people. It was hoped that the 
dancer would be able to perform at the Community awards night.

 That a new Area Board funded dance project was to start during April, 
with a “Rio Carnival” theme.

 Wendy Higginson was currently working with Cllr Connolly to provide 
drug awareness sessions across the community area.

 That volunteers were sought to assist at the local youth clubs.

The Chairman thanked Wendy Higginson for her update.

Page 19



Page 8 of 11

11  Community Area Transport Group (CAT-G) - update

That the Tidworth Area Board agrees the following funding:

 Bulford Road issues - Group agreed plans for dropped kerbs presented and to 
recommend to AB that the scheme should proceed at a cost of £8.4K but that 
the CATG fund £5K with WC central pot funding the £3.4K. 

 Issue 4190 Fosbury Speeding - CATG agreed to recommend to the 
AB that new signs and village gateways be installed at a cost of 
£2995 with contributions from Town Councils and Aster.

 Issue 4258 Lambdown Terrace – Warning Sign - CATG to 
recommend to AB that two warning signs and “slow” road markings 
are installed at a cost of £1699. 

The Chairman thanked Cllr Connolly for his update.

12  Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the Army, NHS, TCAP and 
other Partners

Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service
The written update was noted.

NHS Wiltshire
The written report was noted.

Healthwatch Wiltshire – Paul Lefever
The written report was noted.

Everleigh Parish Council
The written report was noted.

Wiltshire Police – Sgt Andrea Faircloth

 Some traffic related matters and silent 999 calls – mobile phones going 
off by accident.

 Two people had been arrested for forged £20 note offences.

 Local police talking to people attempting to supply drugs to minors.

Page 20



Page 9 of 11

 
Tidworth Garrison – Col Steve Lawton

 Some 322 houses to be built at land on Area 19.

 That the North Eastern Quadrant would now be known as the Ashdown 
Estate.

 Royal Artillery Band Concert on Friday 18 March at the Garrison Theatre.

Tidworth Town Council – Humph Jones

 Various Family Easter events planned over the Easter weekend.

Ludgershall Town Council – Owen White

 That the adult gym equipment at the Recreation Ground was now in use.

 Various Family Easter events planned over the Easter weekend.

 Ludgershall Boys Club – work ongoing as to Ludgershall Town Council 
taking this on.

Alex Bostock – That nominations were still needed for the Tidworth community 
area awards 0n the 21 April.

The Chairman thanked everybody for their updates.

13  Community Area Grants

The Wiltshire Councillors were asked to consider nine applications seeking
2015/16 Community Area Grant funding and three Member Initiatives.

Decision
1st Tidworth Scout Group awarded £850 to provide telephone and 
computer access from the Scout Hut.
Reason
The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Decision
God Unlimited awarded £1,000 for purchase of essential equipment.
Reason

Page 21



Page 10 of 11

The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Decision
Parochial Church Council of Collingbourne Ducis & Everleigh
awarded £575 for Collingbourne Ducis St. Andrews replacement safe.
Reason
The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Decision
Tidworth Over 60's Club awarded £484.96 for Tidworth Over 60s Electrical 
Equipment.
Reason
The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Decision
Ludgershall Preschool awarded £1,525 for Ludgershall Preschool toilet 
conversion.
Reason
The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Decision
Tidworth Town Football Club awarded £1,334 for TTFC Pitch Maintenance.
Reason
The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Decision
Netheravon Fittleton and Haxton Jubilee Committee awarded £3,075 for 
Queens Birthday Party Equipment.
Reason
The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Decision
Ludgershall Scouts Hall awarded £993 for Ludgershall Scout Hall.
Reason
The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Decision
Collingbourne Kingston Parish Council awarded £749 for Collingbourne 
Kingston Digital Village.
Reason
The application meets grant criteria 2015/16.

Page 22



Page 11 of 11

Member Initiatives

Sponsored by Cllr Christopher Williams, to be paid from the 2015/16 digital 
literacy budget.

The request for funding is to provide additonal IT resources, for use of by 
the public in the Ludgershall Town Council office. This will inable further 
training to be given to community groups – awarded £500.

Sponsored by Cllr Christopher Williams, to be paid from the 2015/16 
capital budget.

The request for funding is to provide 200 guides for Ludgershall 
Castle,written by local historian Winifird Dixon. The guide will consist of 
c.15 pages with a number of maps and illustrations to help visitors better 
understand our local community’s history and development – awarded 
£570.

Sponsored by Cllr Christopher Williams, to be paid from the 2015/16 
capital budget.
The request for funding is to provide certificates, frames & trophy’s for the 
TCAP Community Awards – awarded £657.66.

14  Date of Next Meeting, Forward Plan, Evaluation and Close

The next meeting of the Tidworth Area Board will be on Monday 16 May 2016.

Page 23





CM08049/F

 
Topic: Wiltshire Good Neighbours De commissioning briefing

Further Enquiries to: Sue Geary Date Prepared: 22nd March 2016

Introduction and background

This briefing note has been prepared to give an update on the de-commissioning 
arrangements for the Wiltshire Good Neighbours Service (WGN) and to set out 
considerations for area boards.

The Care Act (2014) introduced general duties for local authorities to ensure that 
everyone living within a community has access to information and advice about their 
local care and support system and a general duty to prevent, reduce and delay needs 
arising across a community. The Wiltshire Good Neighbours service (WGN) did not 
meet this requirement as it was only delivered in rural areas in Wiltshire. 

A decision was made to not renew the contract for the WGN service and that the 
funding should be fully devolved to Area Boards from April 1st 2016. 

Health and Wellbeing Groups (HWB).

The Health and Wellbeing Groups will provide a local forum to facilitate the 
coordination of joined up services for older people living within a community area. 
They are intended to gather the views of local older people and ensure these views 
are represented at the Local Area Board. The groups will focus on working with 
community commissioners to identify the needs of a local population and support the 
development of services that will meet these needs.

It is anticipated the groups will identify how best to co-ordinate support for vulnerable 
people in their area in a way that that is more inclusive than the current good 
neighbour service and makes best use of the existing community capacity.

Older Peoples and Carers Champions

To support the development of these groups funds are being devolved to the area 
boards to appoint Older People and Carer champions. 

Each of the area boards have been asked to appoint local older peoples champions 
and carers champions. The champions will be part of the HWB group, identifying the 
needs of carers and older people and working to highlight and address these needs 
through initiatives supported by the HWB group.

Briefing Note

Page 25

Agenda Item 10



CM08049/F

Community Engagement Managers (CEMs) will work closely with the appointed 
champion(s) in order to ensure that the community groups they represent are included 
in area board discussions.

Funding

An annual budget of £6,700 will be devolved to each Area Board to support and 
facilitate HWB group activities. This represents the full budget that previously was 
used to commission GNS.

It is anticipated that HWB groups will draw on local resources and assets in order to 
generate support for local initiatives. 

A further £1000 will be provided annually to each of the area boards to support the 
appointment of older people and carer champions.

De-commissioning Good Neighbours

The GNS will formally come to an end on 31st March 2016. People who were 
supported by GNS have either been referred to Adult Social Care teams or signposted 
to other Voluntary Sector support groups.

The GNS supported a number of groups in the areas they worked. The intention was 
that these groups should not rely on GN input and be self-sustaining. HWB groups or 
the Area Board can consider if they wish to support these groups with the funding they 
have if they are considered important to the community.

Good Neighbours staff will be made redundant on the 31st March. Some Area Boards 
have created new roles around their HWB groups that these staff will be appointed to.

The Council continues to build on the information and advice portal 
www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk. The portal has a wealth of helpful guides 
and a resource directory of local activities and resources.  

What Area Boards Currently Doing?

Area Boards are at different stages around what to do next. Some areas already have 
existing groups that will take on the role of the HWB group, others will be starting from 
scratch and are starting to form a new group.

A Terms of Reference has been drafted for these groups, but Area Boards are 
encouraged to adapt this to suit how they want to meet these needs in their area.

Healthwatch Wiltshire are keen to support the development of these groups and the 
Community Commissioners are discussing the best way for Healthwatch to support 
CEMs and Area Boards.

Most Area Boards are yet to appoint their Older people and Carer champions.

Page 26

http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/


CM08049/F

Further Information

For more information please contact Sue Geary, Head of Community Commissioning, 
sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Page 27

mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:sue.geary@wiltshire.gov.uk




Page 1 of 3

Community Area Well Being Group
Terms of Reference

DRAFT

1. Purpose

Well Being Groups will identify local needs, priorities and outcomes and make recommendations to 
the Area Board on how funding for activities should be deployed.

2. Membership

The Well Being Groups may include representatives of:

 Members of the Community Area Board
 Older Peoples Champion
 Carers Champion
 Health Champion
 People from the community
 Town and Parish Councils
 Health and Social Care Commissioners
 Community and voluntary organisations and groups
 Community transport provider
 Police
 GP Practices
 Other organisations, agencies and individuals that have a genuine interest in promoting the 

welfare and interests of older people

All representatives must be subject to appropriate safeguarding requirements.

The participation and involvement of people

People living in the community must play a central role in all aspects of the Well Being Groups 
including the design, development, delivery and review of the local activities.

Well Being Groups are encouraged to use a variety of methods to ensure people participate and are 
involved in decision-making processes. Existing groups may provide a useful forum for involving 
people, although the decision to retain these groups is for local determination.

Well Being Groups must ensure that consultation with people is representative and takes into 
account the views and needs of under-represented groups (those with protected characteristics) to 
ensure compliance with the local authorities Public Sector Equality Duty.

Roles of all members of the Well Being Groups

All members will be required to:

Definition of a Well Being Group

The Well Being Group is a sub group of the Community Area Board. It represents a wide range 
of community stakeholders who work in partnership to facilitate well-being across the community 
area. People living in the community play a direct role in setting the agenda for this group.

Page 29



Page 2 of 3

 Take an active part in the development of the Well Being Groups and its aims.
 Ensure that their organisation is represented by a person of appropriate experience/competency 

(or his/her appointed deputy) who has full authority within the relevant organisation to speak on 
behalf of the organisation and contribute fully to all discussions.

 Take responsibility for sharing information with the Well Being Groups relevant to their 
organisation/ stakeholders/sector.

 Contribute any information that may have a bearing on activities for older people and ensure that 
this is shared with the Well Being Groups.

 Champion the voice and influence of people in decision making.
 Be open and honest and work collaboratively.
 Work to promote equality and non-discriminatory practices in all aspects of the Well Being 

Groups activities.
 Respect all members of the Well Being Groups and invited representatives.
 Work to improve outcomes for people and ensure high quality safeguarding practice.

3. Structure

The Well Being Groups should come together on a quarterly basis, operating in a way which 
encourages active engagement, dialogue, debate and improved partnership working between key 
stakeholders. 

A smaller management group will take responsibility for coordinating and planning the Well Being 
Groups activities. The Chair of the group will be decided locally and could be any member of the 
wider Well Being Group. The group will include a member of the Community Area Board, who will 
work with the Chair to present recommendations and provide updates on progress at Area Board 
meetings.

The management group will generally comprise of:

 The chairperson
 Champions
 Community Engagement Manager
 Commissioning Manager for the area

The appointment of councillors (excluding officers) to Well Being Groups will normally be agreed at 
a full meeting of the Area Board. Membership may be varied, with the agreement of the Area Board 
Chairperson, subject to approval at the next full Area Board meeting.

Where required, the Area Board may appoint additional people to the management group if it is felt 
there involvement would be important for the function of the group. 

Alternative people can represent people at the Well Being Group, however, it is preferred that the 
same representative attends if possible to ensure consistency of membership.

4. Responsibilities of the Well Being Groups

Key responsibilities for the Well Being Groups include:

 Facilitating and coordinating the process to design, develop, deliver and review activities for 
people in the local area;

 Developing a written overview of the needs, outcomes, priorities and objectives for activities 
in the local area (sometimes referred to as a Market Position Statement);

 Facilitating and monitoring the provision of a community transport service for the community 
area

 Making recommendations to the Community Area Board on how priorities for  funding should 
be determined (to include evaluating opportunities for applying for grants);

 Monitoring and reporting on the quality and effectiveness local activities;

Page 30



Page 3 of 3

 Monitoring and reporting on the quality and effectiveness of information and advice in the 
community area

 Addressing any conflicts of interest that may arise as part of the local decision making 
process.

Recommendations to the Community Area Board will usually be reached by consensus but if 
necessary these can be agreed by a vote.

The management group may invite representatives from local organisations/agencies to its meetings 
etc to provide expertise or to share local knowledge on activities, projects and programmes in the 
area.

5. Funding

Area Boards will have an annual revenue budget allocated to them. The Well-Being group will 
advise the Area Board on how these funds should be allocated. Well-being groups will be able to 
bid, apply for funding from other sources and would also be expected to feedback to commissioners 
on priorities for the Countywide contracts. 

6. Media Relations

Members of the Well Being Groups may not issue media statements on behalf of the Community 
Area Board. Any media statements about the work of the Well Being Groups should be agreed with 
between the Well Being Groups and Chairperson of the Community Area Board.

7. Review

These terms of reference are subject to change and should be reviewed by the Leader on an annual 
basis.

Page 31





 Sign up for free to one or more activity challenges.

  Individuals or teams will take a virtual journey over eight weeks 
via previous Olympic/Paralympic host cities on the way to the 

venue for the 2016 Games – Rio de Janeiro!

The Big Pledge challenges
This year it’s about getting active, achieving your goal, and having fun. 
Select your challenge and really go for gold!

4 June to 29 July 

Are you 
ready to 
take the 
Road to Rio?

For more information and to register for FREE from 28 April 2016 

go to: www.wiltshire.gov.uk/bigpledge 
wiltshirebigpledge #BigPledge

Challenge Bronze distance Silver distance Gold distance
Road to Rio Challenge (Actual distance 
London to Rio) (Team only)

3000km 7000km 9281km

Running Challenge (Individual) 50km 120km 200km

Cycling Challenge (Individual) 200km 400km 600km

Swimming Challenge (Individual) 20km 35km 50km

Walking Challenge (Individual) 150km 200km 300km

Junior Sports Challenge  
(Individuals 15 yrs and under)

80km 150km 200km

Ultimate Sports Challenge  
(Individual/Team)

800km 1500km 2016km

The Road to Rio

Page 33



             There are two categories of this year’s Big Pledge 
you can enter as a team: Road to Rio Challenge or 
Ultimate Sports Challenge.

 Who can be a team?  
•  Businesses	    
•  Schools	  
•  Community groups    
•  Sports clubs
•  Family	   
•  Friends   
•  Any group of people!

How many can be on a team?
As many as you would like.

How do you sign up as a team?
Assign a team captain who will register the 
team online. Team members can sign up for 
their team, ready to get started on 4 June.

In addition to the individual and team goals, 
everyone that enters will contribute to their 
community’s distance.

So whether it’s on the roads, tracks and 
trails of Wiltshire, in the gym or pool, 

it’s time to get active and have fun on 
the Road to Rio!

Take part 
as a team

www.wiltshire.gov.uk/bigpledge 
wiltshirebigpledge #BigPledge

Page 34



Report to Tidworth Area Board
Date of Meeting 16/05/2016
Title of Report Community Area Grant funding

Purpose of the report:
To consider the applications for funding listed below 

Applicant Amount requested
Applicant: Everleigh Parish Council
Project Title: Everleigh WW1 Commemoration Stone 

View full application
 

£412.00

Applicant: Chute Parish Council
Project Title: Defibrillator for Upper Chute

View full application
 

£829.05

Applicant: Chute Parish Council
Project Title: Village Notice Board- Village Hall Residents

View full application
 

£800.00

Applicant: Collingbourne Cricket Club
Project Title: Under 11 Cricket Equipment

View full application
 

£350.00

Applicant: Collingbourne Ducis Village Hall
Project Title: Improve disabled access and disabled car 
park marking to Village Hall

View full application
 

£500.00

Applicant: Holy Trinity Church
Project Title: Holy Trinity Church Community 
Noticeboard

View full application
 

£834.00

Applicant: Ludgershall Preschool
Project Title: Ludgershall Preschool Parents PC

View full application
 

£459.97

Page 35

Agenda Item 13

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1872
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1769
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1809
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1767
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1763
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1788
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1861


Applicant: Tidworth Memory Cafe
Project Title: Tidworth Memory Cafe

View full application
 

£806.00

Applicant: Collingbourne C of E Primary School - Parents 
Focus Group
Project Title: Collingbourne Primary - WildlifeSensory 
Garden Development Project

View full application
 

£2000.00

1. Background
Area Boards have authority to approve Area Grants under powers delegated to 
them. Under the Scheme of Delegation Area Boards must adhere to the Area Board 
Grants Guidance

The funding criteria and application forms are available on the council’s website. 

2. Main Considerations
2.1. Councillors will need to be satisfied that funding awarded in the 2015/2016 year 
is made to projects that can realistically proceed within a year of it being awarded.

2.2. Councillors must ensure that the distribution of funding is in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Area Boards.

2.3. Councillors will need to be satisfied that the applications meet the Community 
Area Board grants criteria. 

3. Environmental & Community Implications
Grant Funding will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of cultural, 
social and community activity and wellbeing in the community area, the extent of 
which will be dependent upon the individual project. 

4. Financial Implications
Financial provision had been made to cover this expenditure. 

5. Legal Implications
There are no specific legal implications related to this report. 

6. Human Resources Implications
There are no specific human resources implications related to this report. 

7. Equality and Inclusion Implications
Community Area Boards must fully consider the equality impacts of their decisions in 
order to meet the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty.

Community Area Grants will give local community and voluntary groups, Town and 

Page 36

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1781
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1850
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/community-area-grants-criteria-2015-16-april.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/community-area-grants-criteria-2015-16-april.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm


Parish Council’s equal opportunity to receive funding towards community based 
projects and schemes, where they meet the funding criteria. 

8. Safeguarding Implications
The Area Board has ensured that the necessary policies and procedures are in place 
to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable adults. 

9. Applications for consideration 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

1872 Everleigh Parish 
Council

Everleigh WW1 
Commemoration Stone £412.00

Project Description:
There is currently no war memorial in Everleigh. This project is part of our 
commemoration of the 100th anniversary of WW1 and aims to erect an oolitic 
limestone stone with a suitable plaque to commemorate those men and women 
from Everleigh who served their country during WW1 five of whom paid the 
ultimate sacrifice. Lest we forget
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
The project supports The Military Civilian Integration Programme as well as 
contributing to the community engagement ambitions contained within the 
community plan and JSA for the Tidworth Community Area.

 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

1769 Chute Parish 
Council

Defibrillator for Upper 
Chute £829.05

Project Description:
This application is made by the Cross Keys Inn and local Upper Chute Residents. 
The majority population of the Chutes reside in Upper Chute and with the re-
opening of the Cross Keys Inn a defibrillator is required as would be housed at the 
pub.
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
Following a Cardiac Arrest the chance of survival decreases by 23% per minute. It 
is therefore very important medical treatment starts as soon as possible. The UK 
Resuscitation Council suggests an AED should be available wherever medical 
treatment is more than 5 minutes away. 
 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

Page 37

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1872
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1769


1809 Chute Parish 
Council

Village Notice Board- Village 
Hall Residents £800.00

Project Description:
This application although made by the Chute Village Hall is on behalf of the village. 
The village needs a central notice board to which the village hall church and the 
King George Field can display notices and activities. Currently they are being 
stapled to a private barn which is unsightly. A new board would be sighted on the 
green so could be seen by all without having to drive to look at one.
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
A Village or Community Hall is one of the most valuable assets of any community. 
A properly maintained building can provide facilities for social, educational and 
recreational activities for all ages. A well equipped and up to date hall that is 
accessible to all is important to maintaining the health and wellbeing of local 
people.
 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

1767 Collingbourne Cricket 
Club

Under 11 Cricket 
Equipment £350.00

Project Description:
Collingbourne Cricket Club has had an influx of Under 10 Children join in the last 
12 months. Up until now they have been playing soft ball cricket Kwik Cricket but 
are now moving into hard ball cricket. In the past Collingbourne Cricket Club have 
applied for kit through the Lords Taverners scheme but this no longer exists and 
we do not have any Under 11 safety equipment for these new players to use. I 
would like to be able to purchase such kit along with coaching equipment to allow 
them to play the sport of cricket safely and correctly.
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
Increasing levels of sport participation and engaging local volunteers to support the 
leisure provision in the community were voted as JSA priorities by the Tidworth 
Community and this project will support this goal.
 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

1763 Collingbourne Ducis 
Village Hall

Improve disabled access and 
disabled car park marking to 
Village Hall

£500.00

Project Description:
The original main entrance to Collingbourne Ducis Village Hall was installed over 
30 years ago. It is ramped but some of the paving stones are cracked and worn 
also there is a lip at the top of the ramp in the door entrance. This creates 

Page 38

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1809
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1767
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1763


difficulties for wheelchair user’s people with mobility issues and mothers with 
prams. We are seeking to replace this with a continuous ramped access. Disabled 
parking adjacent to the village hall is non-existent. We wish to mark out two 
disabled bays to enable improved and safe parking for disabled users. The village 
hall car park is heavily used particularly in term time. The two bays would ensure 
that car owners with mobility problems would be able to park as near to and as 
safely as possible to the Hall.
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
A Village or Community Hall is one of the most valuable assets of any community. 
A properly maintained building can provide facilities for social, educational and 
recreational activities for all ages. A well equipped and up to date hall that is 
accessible to all is important to maintaining the health and wellbeing of local 
people.
 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

1788 Holy Trinity 
church

Holy Trinity church Community 
Noticeboard £834.00

Project Description:
We would like to purchase a noticeboard to inform the community of events going 
on in the church and church hall to improve the opportunities offered to people in 
our area
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
A Village or Community Hall is one of the most valuable assets of any community. 
A properly maintained building can provide facilities for social, educational and 
recreational activities for all ages. A well equipped and up to date hall that is 
accessible to all is important to maintaining the health and wellbeing of local 
people.
 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

1861 Ludgershall 
Preschool

Ludgershall Preschool 
Parents PC £459.97

Project Description:
I would like to put a WIFI enabled PC in our main entrance for parents/carers to 
use to apply for Universal Credit use Wiltshire.gov website and for local information 
such as children’s centre activities and local support and advice.
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
This application meets the Wiltshire Online digital inclusion grant requirement of  
helping communities wishing to start a new or maintain an existing basic computer 

Page 39

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1788
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1861


skills activities are deigned to support people who are new to computers or who 
have very limited skills and confidence. 
 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

1781 Tidworth Memory Cafe Tidworth Memory 
Cafe £806.00

Project Description:
This grant will be used to provide this project with therapeutic games for memory 
and dexterity including music and television reminiscing CDs and DVDs. The 
projects aim is to provide a safe and welcoming place for those with memory 
problems their friends and families to meet relax and have a cup of tea or coffee. 
Also aiming to provide some information to users for example from local GP 
practice local health services and Bobby Van Trust Free home security advice
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
Becoming a Dementia Friendly Community is a Tidworth Area Board priority and 
this service offers people with memory problems or dementia and their carers the 
opportunity to meet regularly with other people in similar circumstances, providing 
information and practical tips about coping with dementia and memory problems.  

 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Application 
ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested

1850
Collingbourne C of E 
Primary School - Parents 
Focus Group

Collingbourne Primary - 
WildlifeSensory Garden 
Development Project

£2000.00

Project Description:
To landscape develop and equip an existing overgrown wildlife and sensory 
garden within the school grounds. For the purpose of creating a sensory garden 
and an educational wildlife garden for use by an after school wildlife club as well as 
community groups such as the Brownies, Cubs and Scouts Pre-school and Toddler 
group.
 
Input from Community Engagement Manager:
Increasing levels of outdoor activities for health & wellbeing and engaging local 
volunteers to support this type of provision in the community were voted as JSA 
priorities by the Tidworth Community and this project will support this goal.
 
Proposal
That the Area Board determines the application.

Page 40

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1781
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1850


No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report

Report Author:
Marc Read
Community Engagement Manager
01722 434557

Marc.Read@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Page 41

mailto:Marc.Read@wiltshire.gov.uk




1

                 
AREA BOARD PROJECTS AND COUNCILLOR LED 

INITIATIVES APPLICATION FORM 2016/2017.

Area Board Project 
1. What is the Initiative?

This is a member inititaive sponsored by Cllr Christopher Williams, to be paid from the 2016/17 
capital budget.

The request is for funding to provide the more advanced equipment required for Hikes, 
Expeditions (including Duke of Edinburgh Scheme Expeditions) and Senior Scout activities. 
These have been identified by the older Scouts themselves in conjunction with qualified outdoor 
expedition experts and the appropriate guidance handbooks from the B-PSA and D of E.

2. Where is the initiative taking place?

Ludgershall & Surrounding Area

3. When will the initiative take place?

2016

4. What is the Community benefit/evidence of need/links to Community 
Plan/Community Issue?

The 5th Wiltshire B-P Scout Group is a successful and growing Baden-Powell Scout Association 
Group serving Ludgershall and the surrounding area with an active group of young people and 
adults (17 Beavers aged 6 to 8, 18 Wolf Cubs Aged 8 to 11, 14 Scouts and Senior Scouts aged 
11 to 18, 10 Rover Scouts aged 18+). The Group currently has 9 fully warranted Adult leaders 
and waiting lists in all sections. 

Over the next year the Scout and Senior Scout sections will more than double in size as the 
current Wolf Cubs and Scouts move up increasing the need for the equipment in this request. 
This doubling excludes any influx of new members created by the numerous local housing 
developments underway and the incoming 35 Engineer Regiment to Ludgershall.

Each year the Group holds or takes part in an average of 12 camps and thanks to our initial 
funding in 2013 from the Area Board and Aster Communities has a good set of basic camping 
equipment which is kept in dry, secure storage in Andover to keep it in mint condition albeit at a 
cost to the group of £1k per year.

However, against this positive background with the steady increase in the number of over 13’s in 
the Group we suffer from a total lack of the more advanced equipment required for them to 
undertake their Hikes and Expeditions (including Bronze D of E) and the other more adventurous 

Page 43



2

and self-sufficient outdoor activities our programme includes. 

The Group is also playing an active part in the build up towards the next World Federation of 
Independent Scouts World Jamboree in England in 2018 which is open to all those in the Group 
over the age of 7 and will give them an unmissable opportunity to mix with others from as a far 
afield as Canada, Spain, Denmark and the Czech Republic.

5. What is the desired outcome of this initiative?

It is hoped that this initiative will contribute to tackling Child Poverty issues in the Tidworth 
Community Area as highlighted at the November 2015 Area Board.

• Number of children in poverty in Tidworth Community Area – 480

Significantly higher than Wiltshire average

• Key Stage 4 free school meal attainment gap 54.3% (31.1%)
• % Children who are obese/overweight, Reception Year 25.5% (21.2%)

6. Who will Project Manage this initiative?

The 5th Wiltshire B-P Scout Group Leaders

7. Costs/quotes/ match funding? (total cost £5k require 1 quote, total cost £5k-25k require 
3 quotes)

Quantity Product Cost Total
£1,075 Expedition Rucksacks & Hiking

Rucksacks for Average Size 
Teenagers

4 65 Litre Standard Size Expedition 
Rucksack

£69 £276

Rucksacks for Short/Slight 
Teenagers

2 65 Litre Short Size Expedition Rucksack £69 £138

Rucksacks for Tall Teenagers 2 75 Litre Tall Expedition Rucksack £77 £154
Rucksack Liners 8 Rucksack Liners £16 £128
Dri-Store Bags 8 Dri-Store Bags £13 £104
Rucksack Waterproof Covers 8 Rucksack Waterproof Covers £83 £83
Walking Poles 8 Walking Poles £24 £192

£424 Expedition First Aid  
Survival Bags 1 Survival Bag Set £43 £43
Survival Whistles 1 Survival Whistle Set £18 £18
Emergency Shelter 3 High Viz 4 Man Emergency Shelter £30 £90
High viz Light Weight Rope 1 High viz Light Weight Rope £65 £65
Expedition First Aid Kit 2 Team First Aid Kit for team of 4 to 6 £24 £48
Individual First Aid Kit 8 Individual First Aid Kit for each team 

member
£14 £112

Thermal Blanket 8 Thermal Blanket £3 £24
Hiking Trowel 8 Hiking Trowel £3 £24

£1,988 Expedition Tents & Sleeping
Tents 2 Man 3 Endurance Ravine 3 Man Tent £200 £600

Page 44



3

Tents 3 Man 3 Endurance Ravine 2 Man Tent £220 £660
Sleeping Bag 8 Endurance Dreamlite Sleeping Bag £56 £448
Sleeping Bag Liner 8 Sleeping Bag Liner £12 £96
Sleeping Mat 8 Sleeping Mat £11 £88
Sleeping Mat protector 8 Sleeping Mat protector £5 £40
Self Inflating Pillow 8 Self Inflating Pillow £7 £56

£656 Expedition Cooking  
Expedition Stove 4 Primus ETA Power Stove Set £110 £440
Non Leak Fuel Container 4 Triangia Fuel Bottle £14 £56
Cooking Pans 4 Primus ETA 1 Litre Pan £28 £112
Waterproof Matches 4 Waterproof Matches £5 £20
Stove Fuel 4 Stove Fuel £7 £28

£284 Expedition Navigation
Expedition Standard Compass 4 Silva 15TDCL compass £47 £188
Compass Case 4 Compass Case £7 £28
Waterproof Map Case 4 Waterproof Map Case £17 £68

£570 First Aid Training  
Resuss CPR Dummy 1 Resuss CPR Dummy £190 £190
AED Training Machine 1 AED Training Machine £175 £175
First Aid Tent 1 Vango Aura 400 Tent £158 £158
First Aid Kit

TOTAL £4497

1 Group First Aid Kit £47 £47

8. Additional information

Page 45





Grant Applications for Tidworth on 16/05/2016 

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant Amount Required

1872 Community 
Area Grant

Everleigh WW1 
Commemoration Stone Everleigh Parish Council £412.00

1769 Community 
Area Grant

Defibrillator for Upper 
Chute Chute Parish Council £829.05

1809 Community 
Area Grant

Village Notice Board- 
Village Hall Residents Chute Parish Council £800.00

1767 Community 
Area Grant

Under 11 Cricket 
Equipment

Collingbourne Cricket 
Club £350.00

1763 Community 
Area Grant

Improve disabled access 
and disabled car park 
marking to Village hall

Collingbourne Ducis 
Village Hall £500.00

1788 Community 
Area Grant

Holy Trinity church 
Community Noticeboard Holy Trinity church £834.00

1861
Digital 
Literacy 
Grant

Ludgershall Preschool 
Parents PC Ludgershall Preschool £459.97

1781 Community 
Area Grant Tidworth Memory Cafe Tidworth Memory Cafe £806.00

1850 Community 
Area Grant

Collingbourne Primary - 
WildlifeSensory Garden 
Development Project

Collingbourne C of E 
Primary School - Parents 
Focus Group

£2000.00

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant Amount Required

1872 Community 
Area Grant

Everleigh WW1 
Commemoration Stone Everleigh Parish Council £412.00

Submitted: 24/03/2016 19:53:41

ID: 1872

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Community Area Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 
£0 - £500 

Page 47



3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
Yes 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept
Everleigh Parish comprises of only 85 households and therefore has a very limited capability 
to raise funds through the annual precept. Last year we raised our precept by 1.8 in order to 
contribute towards match funding for this project. Our Parish Councillors do not feel that we 
should ask our residents to contribute more and therefore seek a Community Grant to match 
our villager’s contribution. 

5. Project title?
Everleigh WW1 Commemoration Stone 

6. Project summary:
There is currently no war memorial in Everleigh. This project is part of our commemoration of 
the 100th anniversary of WW1 and aims to erect an oolitic limestone stone with a suitable 
plaque to commemorate those men and women from Everleigh who served their country 
during WW1 five of whom paid the ultimate sacrifice. Lest we forget 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to?
Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SN8 3EY 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Heritage, history and architecture

If Other (please specify)

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:
03/2016 

Total Income:
£6946.00 

Total Expenditure:
£4573.00 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£2373.00 

Page 48



Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£00.00 

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:
Please see paragraph 4. Everleigh Parish Council funds are extremely tight with no free 
reserves and therefore we seek Wilts Council support to provide a grant for part of the costs of 
this project. 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   

10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £824.00  
Total required from Area Board £412.00 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

Plaque Sign 284.00 Everleigh 
Parish Council yes 412.00

Stone 540.00

Total £824   £412

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
All residents of Everleigh young and old will benefit from this WW1 Commemoration Stone 
by reminding us of the importance of service and sacrifice for our country. 

14. How will you monitor this?
The benefit of this project will be apparent by the number of people who stop and consider 
this commemoration stone which will be sited in the heart of Everleigh by the Bus Shelter on 
the A342. This is the key indicator for success and will be monitored by councillors on a 
periodic basis. 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
Maintenance costs of this stone are not expected to be high once the project is completed. 
Everleigh Parish Council will fund any additional costs thus ensuring an enduring 
enhancement for the village. 

Page 49



16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?
Not Applicable. 

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 
for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 
above)

Accounts:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts 

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):
Yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land
Yes I will make available on request the relevant planning permission for the project.
Yes I will make available on request any other form of licence or approval for this project has 
been received prior to submission of this grant application. 

And finally...
Yes the information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

1769 Community 
Area Grant

Defibrillator for Upper 
Chute Chute Parish Council £829.05

Submitted: 10/02/2016 15:53:59

ID: 1769

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Community Area Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 

Page 50



£0 - £500 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
No 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept

5. Project title?
Defibrillator for Upper Chute 

6. Project summary:
This application is made by the Cross Keys Inn and local Upper Chute Residents. The 
majority population of the Chutes reside in Upper Chute and with the re-opening of the Cross 
Keys Inn a defibrillator is required as would be housed at the pub 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to?
Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SP11 9EH 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Health, lifestyle and wellbeing

If Other (please specify)

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:

Total Income:
£ 

Total Expenditure:
£ 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£ 

Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£ 

Page 51



Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   yes

10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £1658.10  
Total required from Area Board £829.05 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

Defibrillator 1010.10 Fundraising 505.05
Heated Locked 
Box 648.00 Fundraising 324.00

Total £1658.1   £829.05

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
Upper Chute is 8 miles from the nearest hospital with no AE. An ambulance can take over 
1hour because of the Wiltshire/Hampshire border. Local residents have asked in the past for a 
defibrillator but had nowhere to house it. With the reopening of the Cross Keys it would be 
based there. 

14. How will you monitor this?
Amount of use 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
Donations from local residents 

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 
for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 

Page 52



above)

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):
Yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land

And finally...
Yes the information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

1809 Community 
Area Grant

Village Notice Board- 
Village Hall Residents Chute Parish Council £800.00

Submitted: 27/02/2016 17:16:52

ID: 1809

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Community Area Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 
£0 - £500 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
No 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept

5. Project title?
Village Notice Board- Village Hall Residents 

6. Project summary:
This application although made by the Chute Village Hall is on behalf of the village. The 
village needs a central notice board to which the village hall church and the King George Field 
can display notices and activities. Currently they are being stapled to a private barn which is 
unsightly. Anew board would be sighted on the green so could be seen by all without having 
to drive to look at one. 

Page 53



7. Which Area Board are you applying to?
Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SP11 9DX 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Arts, crafts and culture
Festivals, pageants, fetes and fayres
Sport, play and recreation

If Other (please specify)

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:

Total Income:
£ 

Total Expenditure:
£ 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£ 

Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£ 

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   yes

10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £1600.00  
Total required from Area Board £800.00 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

Three Bay 
Noticeboard 1600.00 Fundraising 800.00

Total £1600   £800

Page 54



11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
All Parishioners within the Chutes 

14. How will you monitor this?
Level of activity on the board 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
Fundraising and donations 

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 
for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 
above)

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):
Yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land

And finally...
Yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

1767 Community 
Area Grant

Under 11 Cricket 
Equipment

Collingbourne Cricket 
Club £350.00

Page 55



Submitted: 10/02/2016 14:00:47

ID: 1767

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Community Area Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 
£0 - £500 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
No 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept

5. Project title?
Under 11 Cricket Equipment 

6. Project summary:
Collingbourne Cricket Club has had an influx of Under 10 Children join in the last 12 months. 
Up until now they have been playing soft ball cricket Kwik Cricket but are now moving into 
hard ball cricket. In the past Collingbourne Cricket Club have applied for kit through the 
Lords Taverners scheme but this no longer exists and we do not have any Under 11 safety 
equipment for these new players to use. I would like to be able to purchase such kit along with 
coaching equipment to allow them to play the sport of cricket safely and correctly. 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to?
Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SN8 3UH 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Children & Young People
Sport, play and recreation

If Other (please specify)

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:

Page 56



10/2015 

Total Income:
£9242.00 

Total Expenditure:
£8866.00 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£376.00 

Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£7999.00 

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:
We are putting 300 of our own money into this project but for Under 11 equipment and 
coaching aids but do not want to commit anymore as we have an ageing mechanical roller 
ageing Site Screens and Nets that need resurfacing for which a lot of the funds reserved are 
currently planned towards as well as the day to day running of the Club. 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   

10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £700.00  
Total required from Area Board £350.00 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

3x Junior 
Helmets 3x 
Junior Abdo 
Guards

65.00 Our Reserves 350.00

6x Junior 
Cricket Match 
Balls

35.00

3x Boys Size 
Batting Gloves 20.00

3x Boys Size 
Batting Pads 27.00

3X Junior 
Cricket Bats 55.00

1x Boys Size 
wicket Keeping 
Pads Gloves and 
Inners

35.00

2x Kit Bags 60.00
Coaching aids 403.00

Page 57



such as 
Catching Nets 
Training Bibs 
Side Arm 
Throwers and 
Katchet Boards 
Total £700   £350

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
In the last year we have gained an additional 10 Under 11 playing members and now boast a 
total of 20. The majority of these members will be playing hard ball cricket for the first time 
and struggle to afford to buy all the required kit to allow them to do this within the ECBs 
safety Guidelines. We will be running 1 Under 11 team this year and have an additional 9 
Under 9s coming through who will benefit from having access to this equipment going 
forward. The additional coaching kit is to allow us to train the players in multiple skills from 
age 7 to 13. Our whole Colts section of 40 children 

14. How will you monitor this?
The Kit will be stored at the Clubs home Collingbourne Village Hall in secure lockers. It will 
be used in every game 12 arranged for the summer of 2016 at Under 11 so far and along with 
the coaching kit at all practices. 2 a week from April to September 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
Any further equipment will be bought by Collingbourne Cricket Club we could just do with a 
hand in getting the main bulk first. 

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?
The whole project will cost 750 to get all the equipment we wish for. We can currently 
comfortably supply half of that. 

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 
for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 

Page 58



above)

Accounts:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts 

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):

And finally...
Yes the information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

1763 Community 
Area Grant

Improve disabled access 
and disabled car park 
marking to Village hall

Collingbourne Ducis 
Village Hall £500.00

Submitted: 09/02/2016 10:34:24

ID: 1763

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Community Area Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 
£0 - £500 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
No 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept

5. Project title?
Improve disabled access and disabled car park marking to Village hall 

6. Project summary:
The original main entrance to Collingbourne Ducis Village Hall was installed over 30 years 
ago. It is ramped but some of the paving stones are cracked and worn also there is a lip at the 
top of the ramp in the door entrance. This creates difficulties for wheelchair users people with 

Page 59



mobility issues and mothers with prams. We are seeking to replace this with a continuous 
ramped access. Disabled parking adjacent to the village hall is non-existent. We wish to mark 
out two disabled bays to enable improved and safe parking for disabled users. The village hall 
car park is heavily used particularly in term time. The two bays would ensure that car owners 
with mobility problems would be able to park as near to and as safely as possible to the Hall. 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to?
Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SN8 3UH 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Health, lifestyle and wellbeing
Inclusion, diversity and community spirit
Safer communities

If Other (please specify)

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:
06/2015 

Total Income:
£21956.00 

Total Expenditure:
£26897.00 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£4941.00 

Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£25000.00 

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:
WE HAVE A HEAVY MAINTENANCE COMMITMENT FOR THE COMING YEAR 
INCLUDING ELECTRICAL IMPROVEMENTSREPAIRS TO ROOF AND RE-
DECORATION. 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   

Page 60



10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £1000.00  
Total required from Area Board £500.00 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

Improvements 
to ramp. 600.00 reserves yes 300.00

Car park 
markings 400.00 reserves yes 200.00

Total £1000   £500

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
Disabled users of the village hall and mothers using pushchairs and prams ensuring space for 
disabled parking. 

14. How will you monitor this?
At our bi-monthly meetings we have a safety/wellbeing agenda item where issues such as this 
are discussed. 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
NA 

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?
NA 

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 
for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 
above)

Accounts:

Page 61



Yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts 

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):
Yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land

And finally...
Yes the information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

1788 Community 
Area Grant

Holy Trinity church 
Community Noticeboard Holy Trinity church £834.00

Submitted: 21/02/2016 13:32:55

ID: 1788

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Community Area Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 
£0 - £500 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
No 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept

5. Project title?
Holy Trinity church Community Noticeboard 

6. Project summary:
We would like to purchase a noticeboard to inform the community of events going on in the 
church and church hall to improve the opportunities offered to people in our area 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to?

Page 62



Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SP9 7LE 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Children & Young People
Inclusion, diversity and community spirit

If Other (please specify)

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:
01/2016 

Total Income:
£774.87 

Total Expenditure:
£200.00 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£574.87 

Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£3000.00 

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:
Our reserves are needed over the year to help pay running costs of the church which last year 
were 18680 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   

10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £834.00  
Total required from Area Board £834.00 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

Noticeboard 834.00

Page 63



Total £834   £0

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
The local community will benefit in having improved communication about events being 
offered by the church and other groups using our church hall 

14. How will you monitor this?
Verbal feedback from people 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
it is a one-off project 

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 
for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 
above)

Accounts:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts 

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):

Page 64



Yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land
Yes I will make available on request the relevant planning permission for the project.
Yes I will make available on request any other form of licence or approval for this project has 
been received prior to submission of this grant application. 

And finally...
Yes the information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

1861
Digital 
Literacy 
Grant

Ludgershall Preschool 
Parents PC Ludgershall Preschool £459.97

Submitted: 21/03/2016 13:59:42

ID: 1861

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Digital Literacy Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 
£0 - £500 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
No 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept

5. Project title?
Ludgershall Preschool Parents PC 

6. Project summary:
I would like to put a WIFI enabled PC in our main entrance for parents/carers to use to apply 
for Universal Credit use Wiltshire.gov website and for local information such as children’s 
centre activities and local support and advice. 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to?
Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SP11 9RB 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Technology & Digital literacy

Page 65



If Other (please specify)

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:
08/2015 

Total Income:
£193338.29 

Total Expenditure:
£214938.90 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£-21600.61 

Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£26356.53 

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:
We are planning to resurface one of our classroom gardens and have been saving funds for 
this over the past year. 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   

10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £459.97  
Total required from Area Board £459.97 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

Acer Aspire 
All-In-One 379.98

Microsoft 
Office 365 
Home

59.99

Norton Security 19.99

Total £459.96   £0

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

Page 66



12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
The parents/carers of children who attend Ludgershall Preschool will benefit from having the 
free use of the computer and Wi-Fi in our reception area. They will be able to access 
Wiltshire.gov apply for Universal Credit seek out local information and use to access their 
children’s learning journals online in a relaxed environment where they have support at hand 
if needed. Many of our parents/carers do not have or have limited access to the internet. With 
adding Microsoft office they can type out letters if needed to email or post. 

14. How will you monitor this?
The computer will be in our reception area and in clear sight of our office which is manned at 
all times. I will also have a monitoring book for those that use the computer to sign date and to 
state what they have used it for. 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
Once I have purchased the PC there will be no long term extra costs involved as we already 
have available Wi-Fi. 

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?
NA 

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 
for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 
above)

Accounts:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts 

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):

Page 67



And finally...
Yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

1781 Community 
Area Grant Tidworth Memory Cafe Tidworth Memory Cafe £806.00

Submitted: 16/02/2016 15:27:00

ID: 1781

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Community Area Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 
£0 - £500 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
No 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept

5. Project title?
Tidworth Memory Cafe 

6. Project summary:
This grant will be used to provide this project with therapeutic games for memory and 
dexterity including music and television reminiscing CDs and DVDs. The projects aim is to 
provide a safe and welcoming place for those with memory problems their friends and 
families to meet relax and have a cup of tea or coffee. Also aiming to provide some 
information to users for example from local GP practice local health services and Bobby Van 
Trust Free home security advice 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to?
Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SP9 7LE 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Health, lifestyle and wellbeing
Inclusion, diversity and community spirit
Safer communities

Page 68



If Other (please specify)
Dementia friendly communities 

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:

Total Income:
£ 

Total Expenditure:
£ 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£ 

Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£ 

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   yes

10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £806.00  
Total required from Area Board £806.00 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

Pad Air 2 Wi-Fi 
Cellular 16GB 500.00

PANASONIC 
DMC-TZ55EB-
K Superzoom 
Compact Digital 
Camera

100.00

At The Seaside 
in Pictures 20.00

Reminiscing 
Game 1960s to 
2000s

35.00

Cheatwell 
Games 
Nostalgia Board 
Game

12.00

Page 69



Shove 
Halfpenny 
board - Shove 
Hapenny Game

60.00

Bar Skittles 
Game Wooden 20.00

Playing card 
holder x 4 24.00

Pack of large 
playing cards 10.00

wooden quoits 25.00
Total £806   £0

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
This project is for people in Tidworth and surrounding areas who are suffering with memory 
difficulties. It is well documented that caring for someone with memory problems including 
dementia can often be isolating or lonely. These people will benefit by meeting others in a 
similar situation by providing an informal and friendly welcome and a place to relax and enjoy 
games and have fun. 

14. How will you monitor this?
By seeking feedback from those member who attend regularly 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
Currently the funding will be used to purchase some specialist equipment as listed above. As it 
is staffed by volunteers and the building is currently provided by the local church. The only 
additional cost is for tea/coffee and milk which a small charge can be made 

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?
Not applicable 

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 
for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 

Page 70



above)

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):

And finally...
Yes the information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

1850 Community 
Area Grant

Collingbourne Primary - 
WildlifeSensory Garden 
Development Project

Collingbourne C of E 
Primary School - Parents 
Focus Group

£2000.00

Submitted: 15/03/2016 14:24:24

ID: 1850

Current Status: Application Appraisal

To be considered at this meeting: 
tbc contact Community Area Manager 

1. Which type of grant are you applying for? 
Community Area Grant 

2. Amount of funding required? 
£501 - £5000 

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council? 
No 

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept

5. Project title?
Collingbourne Primary - WildlifeSensory Garden Development Project 

6. Project summary:
To landscape develop and equip an existing overgrown wildlife and sensory garden within the 
school grounds. For the purpose of creating a sensory garden and an educational wildlife 
garden for use by an after school wildlife club as well as community groups such as the 
Brownies, Cubs and Scouts Pre-school and Toddler group. 

7. Which Area Board are you applying to?

Page 71



Tidworth 

Electoral Division 

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place?
SN8 3UH 

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports:
Children & Young People
Countryside, environment and nature
Sport, play and recreation

If Other (please specify)

10. Finance: 

10a. Your Organisation's Finance: 

Your latest accounts:

Total Income:
£ 

Total Expenditure:
£ 

Surplus/Deficit for the year:
£ 

Free reserves currently held:
(money not committed to other projects/operating costs)
£ 

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves:

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   yes

10b. Project Finance: 

Total Project cost £4000.00  
Total required from Area Board £2000.00 
Expenditure
(Itemised 
expenditure)

£
Income
(Itemised 
income)

Tick if income 
confirmed £

Materials 1735.92
Collingbourne 
Kingston Parish 
Council

yes 1000.00

Turf 110.00 Collingbourne 
Ducis Parish 

yes 1000.00

Page 72



Council
Sensory 
equipment 520.08

Non-slip 
decking panit 80.00

Trees plants etc. 250.00
Gravel 104.00
Labour 1200.00
Total £4000   £2000

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 
financial year? 
No 

12. If so, which Area Boards?
Tidworth

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 
your local community?
The children at the school will benefit greatly from the developments to the school garden but 
also children from the local community who are members of youth community groups such as 
the Scouts and Brownies will also benefit from having access to the new facilities.They will 
be able to enjoy the interactive sensory garden which will stimulate different senses through 
its imaginative design providing a valuable resource from educational to recreational. The 
wildlife garden will also be an area with the dual purpose of both education and recreation. 
With a nature trail and pond for study of ecology and the environment as well as a story telling 
area and remembrance area for relaxation and reflection. 

14. How will you monitor this?
The school can ensure the facility is used to its maximum potential not only by using it for 
class practical lessons but also by running an after school wildlife club and opening it up to the 
wider community. 

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 
you continue to fund it?
The Sensory garden should be low maintenance and the wildlife garden will be maintained by 
the Wildlife Club with some support from the local Gardening Club. It should not need any 
more funding just some volunteer work. 

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project?

17. DECLARATION 

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 
to inspect upon request:

Quotes:
Yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 

Page 73



for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 
above)

Constitution:
Yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc.

Policies and procedures:
Yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 
as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 
Safety and Environmental assessments.

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 
be applicable):
Yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land
Yes I will make available on request the relevant planning permission for the project.
Yes I will make available on request any other form of licence or approval for this project has 
been received prior to submission of this grant application. 

And finally...
Yes the information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 
activities specified. 

Page 74



The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

 

April 2016 

Change is coming to the NHS:  Local health organisations and communities forge blueprint for 

improved health and wellbeing  

Over the next few months, leaders from health and care organisations from Wiltshire, Bath and North 

East Somerset (BANES) and Swindon will be working together to develop a ‘Sustainability and 

Transformation Plan’ (STP) so that the aims of the  NHS Five Year Forward View – improved health 

and wellbeing, transformed quality of care delivery, and sustainable finances – can become reality.  

The collaboration gives the opportunity to make big changes to the way we address the needs of local 

people at a time when quality, services and finances are all under immense pressure. 

The BANES, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) plan is being led by James Scott, the Chief Executive of 

Royal United Hospital in Bath.  James has been Chief Executive at RUH since 2007, and will oversee 

and coordinate a team drawn from the leaders of each of the health and social care organisations 

included in our STP ‘footprint’ area.    

This means that BSW plan brings together our three hospitals (Royal United Hospital, Great Western 

Hospital and Salisbury Foundation Trust), the three Clinical Commissioning Groups; BANES, Swindon 

and Wiltshire Councils, South West Ambulance Service and Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health 

Partnership Trust.  The providers of our community services – Wiltshire Health and Care, Seqol and 

Sirona – and the Wessex Local Medical Committee (representing GPs from across the BSW area) 

complete our organisational grouping.  Working together to cover a combined population size of 

approximately one million people, the BSW grouping will bid for and receive a transformation fund from 

2017/18 onwards, which will be used to pay for health and social care services for people living in our 

area. 

You can read more about Sustainability and Transformation Plans, how they will work across the 

country and what they mean for the NHS here: www.england.nhs.uk/2016/03/footprint-areas/  

Details of how you can hear more information through public meetings and other engagement 

opportunities will be posted on Wiltshire CCGs website, so please keep checking for details. 

 

Living healthily in middle life can double you chances of being healthy at 70 and beyond 

Public Health England has launched One You, a ground breaking campaign, aimed to encourage 

adults to take control of their lives and become healthier. 

Our lifestyles can be unhealthier than we think and around 40% of all deaths in England are related to 

behavior.  Modern day life makes it hard for people to live healthily and many of us will have 

dramatically increased our chances of becoming ill later in life.   

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 14

https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futurenhs
http://www.england.nhs.uk/2016/03/footprint-areas/
http://www.wiltshireccg.nhs.uk/


The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

 

The environment in which we live, work and play can make it really tough to choose healthy options – 

with many of us sitting at a desk for eight hours a day, technology making it easier to shop, being 

entertained and keep in touch with friends and family all from the sofa. 

Whether we are eating the wrong things, drinking more than we should, continuing to smoke, or just 

not being active enough, all of these small things can add up to an unhealthy you. 

One You gives you the chance to change your lifestyle choices by providing you with all the tools, 

support and encouragement you need to help improve your health right away.   

Take the One You health quiz ‘How Are You?’ to see how you score and start the fight back to a 

healthier you 

Giving you the support to make better choices today can have a huge influence on your health, and 

could help prevent diseases such as type 2 diabetes, cancer and heart disease and will also reduce 

your risk of suffering a stroke or living with dementia, disability and frailty in later life.  

It’s up to all of us to make a change and shape our further health - Take the quiz now – it’s never too 

late to get your health back on track 

Page 76

https://www.nhs.uk/oneyou/hay#Op1wPZ3pBkuHZzVs.97


 

 

          Area Board Update - April 2016 

Consultation on proposed changes to the Wiltshire Council charging policy  

Wiltshire Council is consulting on a number of proposed changes to its policies relating to 
charging for certain care services.  The Consultation started on Tuesday 1st March and closes 
on Monday 30th May.  Healthwatch Wiltshire wants to hear from local people about the 
changes which include changes to its charging policy for adult social care.  We are holding a 
number of public meetings around the county where you can hear from the Council about the 
proposed changes and have your say.  There is also a survey which can be completed online.  If 
you cannot get to a meeting or complete the online survey, we still want to hear your views.  
Please get in touch with us!  We will be writing a report based on what we hear from local 
people for the Council which it will consider when it makes its final decision.  More 
information can be found here: http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk/news/take-part-

consultation-process-proposed-changes-wiltshire-council-charging-policy. 

Make sure your views are heard! 

 

Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection of Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership 

NHS Trust 

The CQC is the independent regulator of all health and adult social care in England.  On 23rd 
May 2016 the CQC will be inspecting the services provided by the Avon and Wiltshire Mental 
Health Partnership NHS Trust.  It wants to hear from local people about their experiences of 

services to help them to understand what is good and bad about the care provided. 

If you would like to provide any feedback on your experiences of services, please contact the 
CQC: telephone 0300 0616161; email enquires@cqc.org.uk; website http://www.cqc.org.uk/
share-your-experience-finder.  Alternatively you can contact Healthwatch Wiltshire as we work 

closely with the CQC to support its inspections. 

 

Your Care Your Support Wiltshire 

We are working with Wiltshire Council and NHS Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning group, on the 
new health and care information website called Your Care Your Support Wiltshire: 
www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk.  The aim is that the website becomes the ‘go to 

place’ for information about health and care. 

 

 

 

Would you like to get involved?  We are looking for people to 
provide feedback on the website or to get involved in a focus 
group or reader’s panels.  This is your chance to help build a 
really useful health and social care website fit for Wiltshire 

people. 

 

 

Contact us: 

Tel 01225 434218 

info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk 

www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk 

Page 77

http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk/news/take-part-consultation-process-proposed-changes-wiltshire-council-charging-policy
http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk/news/take-part-consultation-process-proposed-changes-wiltshire-council-charging-policy
mailto:enquires@cqc.org.uk?subject=AWP%20NHS%20Trust%20inspection
http://www.cqc.org.uk/share-your-experience-finder
http://www.cqc.org.uk/share-your-experience-finder
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk
mailto:info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk
http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk



	Agenda
	2 Chairman's Welcome, Introductions and Announcements
	Army Rebasing May update
	Background
	May 2016 Update

	05. Groundwork and Tesco 'Bags of Help'
	05. 'Meet the Funder' Event

	5 Minutes
	10 Community Engagement Manager - updates
	WBG Terms of reference (2)
	Road to Rio Flyer

	13 Community Area Grants
	Member Grant Application - Ludgershall Scouts
	areaboard_grant_papers_report

	14 Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the Army, NHS, TCAP and other Partners
	Healthwatch April


